
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Wednesday, 23 December 2020.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 

     

 

 

 
 

Tuesday, 5 January 2021 at 10.00 am 
Virtual meeting - This meeting is being held remotely using 

Skype for Business 
 

 
Committee 
Members: 

 
Councillor Judy Stevens (Chairman) 
Councillor Hilary Westropp (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Paul Fellows, Councillor Virginia Moran, Councillor Susan Sandall, Councillor 
Mrs Judy Smith and Councillor Jill Thomas 

 
 

 
Invited 
Cabinet 

Members 

 
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the Council 
Councillor Barry Dobson, the Deputy Leader of the Council  
Councillor Annie Mason, the Cabinet Member for Communities 
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations  
Councillor Robert Reid, the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, the Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy 

 

Agenda 

 Virtual Meeting - Joining Arrangements 
Councillors should access the meeting using the link in their calendar. 
 
Members of the press and public can gain access to the meeting by using the following link: 
 

Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 5 January 2021 

 

Culture and Visitor 
Economy Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 

https://meet.southkesteven.gov.uk/d3/7Z83Y38Y


 

 

If you are using a smartphone or tablet it may be necessary to download the Skype for Business app 
before you can enter the meeting; please allow yourself time to do this. If you are using a laptop or 
desktop computer, you should be able to access the meeting via your web browser. 
 
When you follow the link to the meeting you will enter a virtual lobby; you will be invited into the 
meeting from the lobby just before the meeting begins. Members of the public should not use the 
Chat function in Skype for Business. This is for use by Councillors, who will use it to indicate that 
they would like to speak. 
 
If you have any questions about how to join the meeting, please e-mail 
democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk. 
 

1.   Comments from Members of the Public 
To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 
discretion. 

 

   
2.   Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence  

   
3.   Disclosure of Interests 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 

 

   
4.   Action Notes from the meeting held on 17 November 2020 (Pages 3 - 8) 

   
5.   Updates from the previous meeting (Pages 9 - 11) 

   
6.   Cabinet Member Decision 1 December 2020 - Public Realm 

Improvements, St Peter's Hill, Grantham 
To consider a call-in by Councillor Ashley Baxter that met the required criteria 
in accordance with Article 17 of the Council’s Constitution in relation to ‘Item 7, 
Public Realm Improvements, St Peter's Hill, Grantham’ that was presented and 
agreed by Cabinet on 1 December 2020.  

(Pages 13 - 24) 

   
7.   Update to Visitor Economy and Tourism Action Plan 

Receive a presentation to consider the final draft of the Greater Lincolnshire 
and Rutland Tourism Action Plan 2021-2025 to then be published by the end of 
January 2021. 

 

   
8.   Leisure SK Ltd 

To consider from a verbal presentation of the newly incorporated Leisure SK 
Ltd, scope and timetable for future reports to the committee. 

 

   
9.   Impact Covid-19 to the Culture and Arts Community 

To receive a verbal update on impact to the culture and arts community as well 
as venues due to Covid-19. Update to include: 

1. Deepings Literary Festival 
2. Update to Digital Arts 

 

   
10.   Mental Health Workshop 

Verbal feedback by Councillors who attended the Mental Health Workshop 
held on 10 December 2020 

 

   
11.   Work Programme 2021 

To consider items for the 2020/21 Committee work programme and note the 
Cabinet Forward Plan 

(Page 25) 

   
12.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 

circumstances decides is urgent 
 

   

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


 
 

Meeting of the 
Culture and Visitor Economy 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
Tuesday, 17 November 2020, 10.00 am 

 

 

 

Meeting held virtually, via Skype 
 

 
Committee Members present 
  
Councillor Paul Fellows 
Councillor Virginia Moran 
Councillor Susan Sandall 
Councillor Mrs Judy Smith 
 

Councillor Judy Stevens (Chairman) 
Councillor Jill Thomas 
Councillor Hilary Westropp (Vice-
Chairman) 
 

Cabinet Members 
 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew (Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy) 
 
Officers Other Members present 
 
Michael Cross, (Head of Arts) 
Ken Lyon (Assistant Chief Executive 
Housing Delivery) 
Paul Stokes (Corporate Operations 
Lead) 
Ben Russell (Performance Lead) 
Kate Taylor (Executive Assistant) 
Zena West (Scrutiny Officer) 
Susan Hislop (Democracy Officer) 
  

 

Councillor Jacky Smith 
 

 

 
62. Comments from Members of the Public 

 
None. 
 

63. Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence 
 
A register of attendance was taken, confirming all committee members were 
present. 

3

Agenda Item 4



 

 
64. Disclosure of Interests 

 
No interests were disclosed. 
 

65. Action Notes from the meeting held on 15 September 2020 
 
The Action Notes from the meeting held on 15 September 2020, were agreed 
as a true record by all present. 
 

66. Updates from the previous meeting 
 
It was noted that the Tourism Action Plan had been circulated to members on 
29 September 2020 and was presented to the committee under item 9 by the 
Visitor Economy Lead from InvestSK. 
 
A further action requesting any items for consideration at a future meeting by 
Members had been noted at the previous meeting. 
 
An update to the Deepings Festival was provided by the Chairman who 
informed members that an online series of events were being held as a 
precursor to the Literary Festival. An initial event was successful with a virtual 
audience with the author Louise Doughty attracting 35 people. Further events 
were planned with accomplished authors.  
 

67. Mental Health Challenge Workshop 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive informed Members of the Council’s proposed 
response to the Mental Health Challenge, set by seven mental health charities 
who are working together to improve mental health across England. A 
workshop was planned for December 2020, with all Culture and Visitor 
Economy and Rural and Communities scrutiny members invited to attend. 
 
A Member recommended the inclusion of Don’t Lose Hope Café based in 
Bourne to the Workshop. The Assistant Chief Executive would liaise with the 
Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy, and if appropriate, extend 
an invitation to the Don’t Lose Hope Café from the Head of Organisational 
Development. The Chairman commended the community response during 
lockdown.  
 
The following Committee Members volunteered to attend the Mental Health 
Challenge Workshop: 
 

Councillor Paul Fellows 
Councillor Judy Smith 

 
A non-committee member also volunteered: 
 

4



 

Councillor Jacky Smith 
 
ACTION 1 

• Assistant Chief Executive to liaise with the Cabinet Member for Culture 
and Visitor Economy and if appropriate, request invitation to Mental 
Health Challenge Workshop be sent to Don’t Lose Hope Café of 
Bourne from the Head of Organisational Development. 

 
68. Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 

 
The Assistant Chief Executive presented a report on Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs), informing members that the Corporate Plan had been 
approved by Full Council on 1 October 2020. This would set out the vision of 
the Council for South Kesteven.  
 
Various actions had been identified within the Corporate Plan that generated 
KPIs for consultation with the relevant committees. A proposed set of KPIs 
and targets had been set for this committee and were presented for 
consideration and approval with the targets then monitored going forward. The 
setting of new baselines would be necessary. 
 
The Chairman observed the excellent progress and work on markets towards 
being self-sufficient with acknowledgement that the target for next year would 
require realigning due to the impact of the pandemic. 
 
In response to Members’ questions the Assistant Chief Executive advised that 
an annual review would be undertaken after quarter 4 to look at performance 
and to consider targets and actions. The Head of Arts updated the Committee 
on work and plans being undertaken for the promotion of historical figures 
from the District. The impact of the pandemic on the Town Hall at Bourne had 
presented challenges though there remained great positivity for the future. 
The high level of support needed for all facilities post pandemic was 
recognised by members. 
 
An update on the progress of the KPIs will be provided at each meeting of the 
committee. The hard work of the officers was noted by the Committee. 
 
On being put to the vote it was AGREED: 
 

1. To approve the proposed Key Performance Indicators and targets 
associated with the actions in the South Kesteven Corporate Plan 
2020-23. 

 
2. To note that key performance indicators and success criteria for each 

action will be reviewed and if necessary revised as part of the annual 
review process. 

 

5



 

ACTION 2 

• To add KPIs to the work programme for each meeting going forward. 
 

69. Culture Recovery Fund Update and Service Action Plan Proposals for 
2021-22 
 
Members were directed to slides that had been provided ahead of the 
meeting. In his presentation to the Committee, the Head of Arts updated 
members that to date £230,000 of Culture Recovery funding had been 
provided by the Government in response to a bid made by SKDC. The funding 
received was to protect jobs, particularly assisting freelancers and restart 
performances over a six-month period from October 2020. The Head of Arts 
confirmed he was holding ongoing discussions with the arts community 
focussing on job creation for the freelance sector.  
 
Stewarding and safety measures have had to be considered when delivering 
past and future phases of work. Social distance measures in indoor venues 
were being investigated and reviewed for a continued phased reopening of 
venues.  
 
Funding was also based on delivering activities and redelivery of activities 
when safe to do so and took into account actions such as redeployment of 
staff to try to support the wider work of the council. Planned events for 
November had been suspended; once Covid-19 guidance was known for 
December it was hoped to continue some activities including pay to view 
options that were being explored. Refurbishment work to venues would be 
reported back when progress has been made. 
 
Members congratulated the Head of Arts and his Team for their handling of 
the pandemic crisis. They also observed the low level of funding that had been 
supplied from government, and were encouraged to attend the next meeting 
of the SK Creative Artists’ Network, with future dates to be sent to Members 
by the Head of Arts and to extend invitations to include representatives from 
the visitor economy. The network is an informal forum for individuals and 
organisations within South Kesteven’s creative/cultural sector, brought 
together every 8-10 weeks in order to share their projects, aspirations and 
challenges, thereby informing future strategic priorities and initiatives.   
 
ACTION 3 

• The Chairman to liaise with the Head of Arts regarding inviting a 
representative from Arts Pop Up, a non-profit contemporary arts 
organisation, to attend a future meeting of the Committee 

• The Head of Arts to circulate to members invitations to future meetings 
of SK Creative Artists’ Network and to investigate extending invitations 
to include representatives from the visitor economy 

 

6



 

Council Services Action Plan 
 
The Council action plan links to identified KPIs that will be monitored by the 
Committee. Proposed Cultural Services Activity Plans activities had been 
identified as part of the report on the Cultural Strategy. The Committee was 
invited to identify priority items to pursue as a service and in particular any 
areas relating to the Cultural Services’ KPIs identified in the previous item.  
 
A cultural creative Community Interest Company was being explored to build 
on potential investment from the private sector and other external bodies 
where funding is not generally available to the Council. It is intended that the 
Council will identify individuals and organisations to work with in partnership in 
order to bring larger amounts of grant funding to the district. 
 
In response to concerns over accountability of a Community Interest 
Company, the Head of Arts explained that the structure was not known at 
present. However, any future partner organisation would be community 
focussed rather than specific to a particular discipline or geographic area, with 
a broad selection of representatives from the creative sector included in its 
organisational structure. 
 
Skills training and professional development 
 
The Cultural Strategy had identified the importance of a strong, cohesive and 
inclusive cultural service, delivered through appropriate skills and resources. 
Developing links with visitor economy colleagues had been identified as an 
area for increased participation and engagement, with work continuing.  
 
The concept of working in tandem with the community and the inclusion of the 
visitor economy with the culture sector was welcomed by Members. 
 
Members were requested by the Chairman to inform her or the Head of Arts of 
any other areas for priority or additions to the future programme as well as 
suggested Committee priorities. 
 

70. Visitor Economy and Tourism Action Plan 
 
Members received an update of the action plan from the Visitor Economy Lead 

of InvestSK. 
 
The discretionary grant went live on 13 November 2020 for businesses that 
had to close during lockdown. Applications were already being received. It 
was reported that the Visitor Economy Officer was in constant communication 
with tourism businesses. A winter attraction list was being prepared and 
updated in readiness for the end of the lockdown. 
 
Funding had been received from Visit England towards Cycle England and 
Explorers Road, with access to further funding available to support the tourism 

7



 

action plan. Members additionally heard that following commissioning of new 
photographs these were now available free to use for marketing by local 
businesses. A draft of the new website ‘Visit Lincolnshire’ would be provided 
to members after the meeting. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy informed councillors 
that a ‘Tea Break’ meeting was organised to ensure all local businesses 
including B&Bs, were aware of support available which attracted 120 people, 
many from the visitor economy.  
 
Appreciation was extended by the Committee to the Visitor Economy Lead and 
the Visitor Economy Officer from InvestSK for their work to support local 
people and businesses. 
 
ACTION 4 

• The Visitor Economy Lead from InvestSK to provide members with 
details of the new ‘Visit Lincolnshire’ website. 

 
71. Work Programme 

 
The following to be added to the Work Programme: 
 

1. KPIs to be presented by the Assistant Chief Executive at each meeting 
 

2. Impact of Pandemic to continue to feature at each meeting 
 
The Committee agreed to amend the meeting times of all virtual meetings of 
the Committee to the morning.  
 
ACTION 5 

• Democracy Services to update the meeting times for all virtual 
meetings of the Committee.  

 
72. Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 

circumstances decides is urgent 
 
Committee members and the Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy extended their appreciation to the Scrutiny Officer for her 
contribution to the committee and wished her well in her new role outside the 
organisation.  
 
Meeting closed at 11:25 
 
 

8



 
 

Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee – 2020/2021 

Actions from meeting held on 17 November 2020 
 

 
Task 

Assigned 
to 

Deadline 
Noted 

by 
Progress/Comments 

 17 November 2020 

59 Mental Health Challenge Workshop 

Assistant Chief 
Executive to liaise with 
the Cabinet Member for 
Culture and Visitor 
Economy and if 
appropriate, request 
invitation to Mental 
Health Challenge 
Workshop be sent to 
Don’t Lose Hope Café of 
Bourne from the Head of 
Organisational 
Development. 

Assistant 
Chief 

Executive 

11 
December 

2020 

Susan 
Hislop 

Response received 17 December from the Assistant Chief Executive that the 
workshop took place on 10 December, initially this was an internal workshop 
only, seeking to agree the scope of the Mental Health challenge for South 
Kesteven.  The workshop was very productive and a cross party working 
group was formed to continue to develop the South Kesteven approach – 
the working group will engage with external organisations, such as the Don’t 
Lose Hope Café at future meetings. 
 

 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 

To add KPIs to the work 
programme for each 
meeting going forward. 

Democracy 
Services 

 Susan 
Hislop 

Action included within Work Programme 

 Culture Recovery Fund Update and Service Action Plan Proposals for 2021-22 

1. The Chairman to 
liaise with the Head 
of Arts regarding 
inviting a 

Chairman 
and Head 

of Arts 

16 
December 

2020 

Susan 
Hislop 

Discussions held between the Head of Arts and Democratic Services on 
17 December 2020 with an invitation to Arts Pop Up to be extended to 
provide a presentation to the Committee on 9 March 2021 

 

9

A
genda Item

 5



 
 

 
Task 

Assigned 
to 

Deadline 
Noted 

by 
Progress/Comments 

representative from 
Arts Pop Up, a non-
profit contemporary 
arts organisation, to 
attend a future 
meeting of the 
Committee 

2. The Head of Arts to 
circulate to members 
invitations to future 
meetings of Creative 
People and to 
investigate extending 
invitations to include 
representatives from 
the visitor economy 

Head of 
Arts 

16 
December 

2020 

Susan 
Hislop 

Response received from the Head of Arts on 18 December 2020 inviting 
Members to Zoom meeting of SK Creatives Networking Meeting on 
Thursday 14th January at 4pm. 

 Visitor Economy and Tourism Action Plan 

The Visitor Economy 
Lead from InvestSK to 
provide members with 
details of the new ‘Visit 
Lincolnshire’ website. 

Visitor 
Economy 

Lead, 
InvestSK 

16 
December 

2020 

Susan 
Hislop 

Response received on 22 December 2020 from the Visitor Economy Lead, 
InvestSK with link and information to website under construction circulated to 
Members on same day. 
 

 Work Programme 

To add to the Work 
Programme:  
1. KPIs to be presented 

by the Assistant 
Chief Executive at 
each meeting 

2. Impact of Pandemic 
to continue to feature 
at each meeting 

Democracy 
Services 

16 
December 

2020 

Susan 
Hislop 

Both items added to committee work programme 

10



 
 

 
Task 

Assigned 
to 

Deadline 
Noted 

by 
Progress/Comments 

Democracy Services to 
update the meeting 
times for all virtual 
meetings of the 
Committee. 

Democracy 
Services 

16 
December 

2020 

Susan 
Hislop 

All meetings have been arranged to be morning meetings 

 

11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Culture and Visitor 
Economy Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 
5th January 2021  

Report of: Shahin Ismail, Monitoring Officer 

  Monitoring Officer[Position] 

         
  

 

Cabinet Decision Call-in - Public Realm Improvements, 
St Peter’s Hill, Grantham  

The report provides a summary of the call-in and sets out the options available to the Culture and 
Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee in the process.  
 

 

 

Report Author 

Dan Snowdon, Interim Head of Governance 

Tel:  01223 699177 

Email:  Dan.Snowdon@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Not applicable Not applicable Grantham St Wulfram's 

 

Reviewed by: Richard Wyles (S151 Officer) 22/12/2020 

Approved by: Shahin Ismail (Monitoring Officer) 22/12/2020 

Signed off by: Karen Bradford (Chief Executive) 22/12/2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Notes the contents of the report; 

2. Considers the decision of Cabinet in relation to its decision regarding Public Realm 
Improvements, St Peter’s Hill, Grantham.  

13

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Dan.Snowdon@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 Background  

1.1 Cabinet received a report at its meeting held on 1 December 2020 regarding Public Realm 

Improvements, St Peter’s Hill, Grantham. The report is attached at Appendix A to this 

report.  

1.2 The report made the following recommendations that were approved: 

1. Cabinet is asked to approve the installation of the statue on St Peter’s Hill Green, 

in accordance with the agreed planning permission; 

2. To approve a budget allocation from the Local Priorities Reserve and authorise 

expenditure of up to £100k to underwrite the statue unveiling even and any 

consequential works.  Any fundraising from the public, businesses and others will 

go towards funding this budget allocation; 

3. To approve the engagement of an external organisation, as part of the above 

allocation, to coordinate the unveiling, including event management, 

communications and fundraising campaign; and 

4. To delegate to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader and 

Monitoring Officer, the authority to enter into a deed of gift agreement with The 

Public Memorials Appeal to transfer the ownership of the statue to the Council 

from the point of installation.  

1.3 A request to call-in the decision was received by the Chief Executive on 6 December 2020 

and was approved by the Monitoring Officer.  A copy of the completed form is attached at 

Appendix B. 

1.4 The stated reasons to call in the decision are as follows: 

(a) It is outside the delegated powers of the Cabinet; 

(b) There has been inadequate/insufficient consultation with Members and other 

stakeholders including Grantham residents; 

(c) Insufficient consideration of all options/relative weighting of options; 

(d) Cabinet members conflict of interest; and  

(e) Significant public interest in the decision.  

 

2 The Role of Overview and Scrutiny 

The statutory requirement for call in is contained in Section 21 of the Local Government 

Act 2000 and allows elected members to call in a decision made by the Cabinet that has 

yet to be implemented. 

Calling in the decision prevents the decision taking immediate effect, to ensure that the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee has an opportunity to ask questions of Cabinet 

Members and relevant officers, to find out more about the rationale behind the Decision. 

2.1 The Constitution sets out the powers of Overview and Scrutiny Committees with regard to 

call in at Article 6 (6.18 and 6.19).   

2.2 The Constitution states that; 

14



 

 
 

If, having considered the decision, the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee is still 

concerned about it, then the Committee may refer it back to the decision-making person or 

body for reconsideration setting out in writing the nature of its concerns, or refer the matter 

to full Council. If referred to the decision-maker, he or she shall then reconsider within a 

further 5 working days, amending the decision or not, before adopting a final decision. 

Therefore, following debate, the Committee may either: 

(a) Endorse the decision taken by Cabinet in relation to this matter; 

(b) Refer the matter to the next meeting of Cabinet for reconsideration; or 

(c) Refer the matter to Full Council.  

 

3 Process for call in  

In order to provide structure to the call in, it is proposed that the following process is 

adopted for the meeting: 

3.1 Each of the five members who requested the call in be given the opportunity to speak, 

each person to speak for no more than 5 minutes. The grounds for the call in should be 

explained; 

3.2 Any ward member who wishes to speak may speak for no more than 5 minutes; 

3.3 Cabinet members and relevant officers to respond  

3.4 Committee members to deliberate and vote on outcome. 

 

4 Financial Implications  

4.1 The financial considerations with respect to the report ‘Public Realm Improvements, St 

Peter’s Hill Grantham’ (that was considered by Cabinet on 1 December 2020) are 

contained within that report.  There are no specific financial considerations arising from 

this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

5 Legal and Governance Implications  

5.1 Legal implications are contained within the body of this report. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Monitoring Officer 

6 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

6.1 None. 

7 Risk and Mitigation 

7.1 Not applicable  

8 Community Safety Implications  

8.1 Not applicable  

9 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

15



 

 
 

9.1 Not applicable 

10 Other Implications (where significant)  

10.1 None 

11 Background Papers 

11.1 South Kesteven District Council Constitution: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=600&Mid=3713&Ver=

4&Info=1 

12 Appendices 

12.1 Appendix A - Report to Cabinet 

Appendix B – Decision Call-in Request Form 

 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not applicable 

Previously Considered by:  Not applicable 

Final Decision date   Not applicable 

 

16

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=600&Mid=3713&Ver=4&Info=1
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=600&Mid=3713&Ver=4&Info=1


 

 

 

Cabinet 
1 December 2020 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 
The Leader of the Council  

   

         
  

Public Realm Improvements, St Peter’s Hill, Grantham  

 

South Kesteven District Council is working in partnership with the Grantham Community Heritage 
Association and The Public Memorials Appeal on a project to deliver and install a statue of the late 
Baroness Margaret Thatcher.  The statue was commissioned and funded by The Public Memorials 
Appeal and is due to be unveiled on St Peter’s Hill, Grantham in 2021.  This report relates to the 
arrangements for the associated works and the event to unveil the statue.  

 

Report Author 

Susie McCahon, Team Leader Corporate Operations 

Tel:  01476 406423 

Email:  s.mccahon@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Growth Non-Key Grantham St Wulfram's 

Reviewed by: Ken Lyon, Assistant Chief Executive 20 November 2020 

Approved by: Gary Smith, Strategic Director Commercial and 
Operations 

20 November 2020 

Signed off by: Cllr Kelham Cooke – The Leader of the Council 23 November 2020 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Cabinet is asked to approve the installation of the statue on St Peter’s Hill Green, in 
accordance with the agreed planning permission.   

2. To approve a budget allocation from the Local Priorities Reserve and authorise 
expenditure of up to £100k to underwrite the statue unveiling event and any 
consequential works.   Any fundraising from the public, businesses and others will 
go towards funding this budget allocation.  

3. To approve the engagement of an external organisation, as part of the above 
allocation, to coordinate the unveiling, including event management, 
communications and fundraising campaign. 

4. To delegate to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader and the 
Monitoring Officer, the authority to enter into a deed of gift agreement with The 

17

Appendix A

mailto:s.mccahon@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

Public Memorials Appeal to transfer the ownership of the statue to the Council from 
the point of installation. 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The statue project is the result of an agreement between Grantham Community Heritage 

Association (GCHA, aka Grantham Museum), South Kesteven District Council and The 

Public Memorials Appeal.  Originally destined for London, the statue was funded by The 

Public Memorials Appeal and further money to support the project was raised by the GCHA 

Margaret Thatcher Appeal. 

1.2 The Public Memorials Appeal commissioned the bronze statue and worked with a 

stonemason to design and commission the plinth for the statue.  In addition, The Public 

Memorials Appeal commissioned and arranged for three plaques to be fixed to the plinth 

once installed. 

1.3 All funding from The Public Memorials Appeal was raised through public subscription and 

donations. 

1.4 GCHA undertook local fund-raising activities and events which funded associated project 

costs including the foundation base for the plinth, the installation of the statue and other 

archaeological and survey works.  

1.5 The unveiling of the statue provides an opportunity for Grantham’s community to celebrate 

its heritage.  The event will be used to promote ‘Inspirational Women of South Kesteven’ 

including Edith Smith who served in Grantham as the first female warranted police officer in 

the country and Harriet Arbuthnot, close friend and advisor of the Duke of Wellington when 

he was Prime Minister between 1828-1830. 

1.6 Celebrating the area’s rich heritage is part of the Council’s plans to regenerate Grantham 

and to ensure all that the District has to offer continues to be promoted. 

1.7 The statue is expected to attract many visitors to the area which will increase Grantham and 

South Kesteven’s status as a destination for tourism with the associated benefits that brings. 

1.8 An increase in visitor numbers to the area will boost the local economy and benefit our local 

shops and businesses.   

1.9 The interest from visitors to the area will support Grantham Museum and enable them to 

develop their permanent Margaret Thatcher exhibition which already attracts thousands of 

people each year.   

1.10 InvestSK is keen to work closely to use the statue and unveiling to attract inward investment 

and to promote the plans and benefits from the Future High Streets Fund initiative.  InvestSK 

has also developed a film to celebrate ‘Inspirational Women of South Kesteven’ which 

complements any wider community legacy work.    

1.11 The unveiling event is expected to attract a high level of national and potentially international 

media attention which will provide many opportunities for the Council and InvestSK to 

showcase and promote the District. 

1.12 There will be costs to holding an event of this scale.  This has to be balanced against the 

potential benefit of commemorating one of the most famous people to have come from 

Grantham, and the opportunity for the statue and unveiling event to attract global attention.  

It is proposed that an external organisation is engaged to oversee the unveiling, including 

planning the event, coordinating event logistics, handle stakeholder management and 

manage communications. 

18



 
 

1.13 There is an element of cost to hold any successful large scale event which will also include 

essential elements to ensure that security and public safety is maintained.   This will include 

the provision of essential logistical equipment and personnel for the event such as barriers, 

stewarding and medical support. 

1.14 The Council intends to launch a community and business fundraising appeal to secure 

contributions to fund the event.  This will be planned and managed by an external 

organisation who will prepare the approach and methodology for the fundraising appeal.   

1.15 On-going maintenance costs for the statue will be met by existing maintenance budgets.  

This will be reviewed by the Council as part of the annual budget setting process from 

2022/23 onwards. 

1.16 A ‘Deed of Gift’ will be drawn up to reflect the transfer of ownership of the statue and plinth 

from The Public Memorials Appeal to the Council. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 Discussions about bringing the statue to Grantham began in earnest in July 2018.  This was 

followed by an event in November 2018 at Grantham Museum to unveil plans for the statue 

prior to a planning application to the Council for the installation of the statue, plinth and 

paved surround.   

2.2 The planning application was considered by the Planning Committee on the 5th February 

2019.  The application was approved subject to planning conditions for a written scheme of 

Archaeological Investigation being submitted and approved; recommendations from the 

arboriculture survey being complied with and materials for the paved surround being 

submitted and approved.  All planning conditions have been met and discharged. 

2.3 All Council run festivals and events are discussed at the Lincolnshire Event Safety 

Partnership’s Safety Advisory Group (SAG) in order that event management plans 

incorporate their recommendations. Representatives from the relevant emergency services, 

including Lincolnshire Police, Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue and East Midlands Ambulance 

Service attend the Group together with other agencies such as Lincolnshire County Council 

Highways and Lincolnshire County Council Emergency Planning and Business Continuity.   

2.4 The unveiling event has been discussed at several SAG meetings and officers continue to 

liaise and consult with SAG members prior to the unveiling event. 

 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 The Council could install the statue with little or no event to support it.  Even holding a ‘low 

key’ event means that certain basic costs would be incurred to ensure that the event is both 

safe and well run.  However, the unveiling event is likely to attract a high level of interest 

from both the general public and the media.  It is anticipated that a large number of people 

will want to attend.  In order to fully maximise the opportunities that both the statue and the 

event will bring, it is proposed that the Council ensures adequate funding for the event to 

celebrate the occasion and maximise the promotional opportunities that the event will bring 

for Grantham and the District.    

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 To approve the installation of the statue and complete a deed of gift agreement with The 

Public Memorials Appeal. 

19



 
 

4.2 The preferred option is for the Council to agree to allocate funding to underwrite the event 

unveiling works and to launch a fundraising campaign to seek to cover these costs.  This 

would be supported by an external organisation. 

4.3 If the Council installed the statue without an unveiling event this would miss the opportunity 

to capitalise on the potential benefits provided by the installation of the statue and to mark 

the occasion for Grantham and South Kesteven.    

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 To ensure the Council maximise the opportunities of installing the statue and hosting a 

significant event for Grantham and the District. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 To commission specialist organisation to manage the event management and fundraising 

campaign.  To finalise the deed of gift agreement with The Public Memorials Appeal.  To 

confirm a date for the unveiling of the statue and progress with all plans and arrangements 

for the event. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 Cabinet is asked to allocate £100k to underwrite this project and deliver the outcomes that 

are detailed in the report.  This allocation will be taken from the Local Priorities Reserve.  As 

stated, there are a number of community and business fundraising events that will take 

place in order to reduce the cost share to the Council, but it is prudent to allocate the total 

provision to ensure a quality event is delivered.  In accordance with the Financial 

Regulations approved by Council on 31 January 2020, Cabinet can approve additions to the 

budget framework of up to £150k per item (and cumulatively £500k per financial year). 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 The Council can accept the gift of a statue subject to the conditions attached to the planning 

permission being discharged. If the event requires road closures or other highways 

consents, then these should be obtained in good time prior to the event. 

8.2 The deed of gift will also need to be agreed between the Council and The Public Memorial 

Appeal prior to the installation of the statue. The deed will need to clearly agree any costs; 

liabilities; insurances; and responsibilities for maintenance and other costs after the statue 

is received into Council ownership. Appropriate budgetary provision will also need to be 

made for any ongoing liability and clarity needed if these are to be in perpetuity. The Council 

will also need to reserve its ability to move, decommission or otherwise exercise control 

over the statue in future years. 

8.3 Cabinet should also ensure that it is satisfied that fundraising proposals are sufficiently 

robust to ensure that the full cost outlay of £100k can be realised. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 In line with all Council run festivals and events the unveiling event will have a designated 

accredited steward responsible for safeguarding to respond to any issues of lost/found 

children or vulnerable adults. 

 

20



 
 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 The Event Management Plan and Risk Assessments for the event will incorporate 

recommendations from the Safety Advisory Group to ensure that all aspects of event 

security and public safety are maintained. 

10.2 All works required for the installation of the statue, plinth and paved area will be carried out 

in accordance with relevant health and safety procedures and the conditions associated 

with the planning approval. 

10.3 The engagement of an external organisation to spearhead the fundraising helps to guard 

against the risk that the full event costs are not recouped through the fundraising campaign. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 St Peter’s Hill Green and the Public Realm area is covered by the Council’s CCTV which is 

monitored 24 hours a day.  All works required to install the statue and paved area will be 

done within a securely fenced area to ensure that people cannot enter.   

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’? 

12.1 Nothing of relevance identified when preparing this report. 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 No other significant implications identified. 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 Planning application: http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s22157/S18%202171%20-

%20First.pdf 

15 Appendices 

15.1 None. 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not applicable  

Previously Considered by:  Not applicable 

Final Decision date   1 December 2020 

 

21

http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s22157/S18%202171%20-%20First.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s22157/S18%202171%20-%20First.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Call-in pro forma for O/S 1 

 

 
 

 

REQUEST FOR CALL-IN OF A CABINET DECISION 
 

TO: THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

MINUTE/DECISION NUMBER  01/12/2020 - Cabinet 
 
SUBJECT MATTER: Public Realm Improvements, St Peter's Hill, Grantham__ 
 
DATE OF DECISION:   1 December, 2020 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:  2 December, 2020 
 
 
We, being 5 members of the Council request that the above mentioned decision be 
called in for scrutiny. 
 
We certify than none of us has subscribed to more than 3 requests for call-ins during 
the current Municipal year. 
 
REASONS FOR EXERCISING CALL-IN: 
 

▪ It is outside the delegated powers of the Cabinet; 
 

▪ There has been inadequate/insufficient consultation with Members and 
other stakeholders including Grantham residents; 
 

▪ Insufficient consideration of all options/relative weighting of options. 
 

▪ Cabinet Members’ Conflict of Interest 
 

▪ Significant public interest in the decision 
 
Signed: 
 
 
Sign:____________________________ Print Name:    Cllr Ashley Baxter 
  
Sign:____________________________ Print Name:  Cllr Louise Clack  
 
Sign:____________________________ Print Name:  Cllr Phil Dilks 
 
Sign:____________________________ Print Name:  Cllr Lee Steptoe 
 
Sign:____________________________ Print Name:  Cllr Amanda Wheeler 
 
 
DATE: ____________________________________ 

23

Appendix B

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MID=3983


Call-in pro forma for O/S 2 

 
Call in should only be used in exceptional circumstances. This is where Members of an 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee have evidence which suggests that a decision was not 
taken in accordance with the principles set out in this Article. Evidence may, for example, 
refer to inadequate consultation with stakeholders prior to a decision or an absence of good 
reasons on which to take a decision. 

24



Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2020/21 

Work Programme 

Items Activities and Timetable  
Meeting 
location 

Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs) 
Update 

Update of Key Performance Indicators and targets to note progress 
against KPIs and feed back to Officers on any performance issues or 
successes, and to consider further items for the work programme 
Assistant Chief Executive, Housing Delivery 

9 March 
2021 
(10:00am) 

Virtual 

Arts Pop Up 

Verbal presentation by representative of the Stamford based Arts Pop 
Up, a non-profit contemporary arts organisation (Arts Pop Up) to brief 
Members on their past success, work through the pandemic and 
future plans. 
Presentation from the Head of Arts 

  

 

25

A
genda Item

 11

https://artpopup.co.uk/


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Action Notes from the meeting held on 17 November 2020
	5 Updates from the previous meeting
	6 Cabinet Member Decision 1 December 2020 - Public Realm Improvements, St Peter's Hill, Grantham
	Appendix A Report to Cabinet
	Appendix B Decision Call-in Request Form

	11 Work Programme 2021

